
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to three (3) minutes.  Any person desiring to address the Council during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Council meeting between 5:00 p.m. and 5:15 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or anytime between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in the
Office of the City Clerk. They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be directed to
the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12) copies
should be made available, and may not be returned.

 

AGENDA
MUSKOGEE CITY COUNCIL

April 9, 2018
 
 

REGULAR SESSION - 5:30 P.M., 3RD FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
229 W. OKMULGEE, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

INVOCATION - COUNCILMEMBER JAIME STOUT

FLAG SALUTE - MAYOR BOB COBURN

ROLL CALL - MAYOR BOB COBURN

           

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MARCH 19, 2018, CITY
COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION MARCH 26, 2018.
 

CONSENT AGENDA
 

The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 
 

1. Approval of claims for all city departments March 15, 2018 through March 28, 2018.
 

2. Approval to accept Staff recommendation to REJECT all bids for the Emergency Management
building roof and rebid at a later date, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

 

3. Approval to receive donated funds for the month of February, 2018 in the amount of
$430.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

 



4. Approval of Resolution No. 2717 and Resolution No. 2718 declaring two (2) parcels of
property, more particularly described in the resolution, as surplus to the needs of the City and
authorize the conveyance of said properties, or take any other necessary action. (Gary D.
Garvin)

 

5. Approval to participate in The Poor People's Campaign: A National Call for Moral Revival, in
furtherance of Resolution No. 2505 designating the City of Muskogee as a Community of
Practice. (Councilor Marlon Coleman)

 

6. Approval of Resolution No. 2719 of the Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma,
Commemorating the 50th Anniversary of the Death of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., or take
other necessary action. (Councilor Marlon Coleman)

 

7. Approval of a location agreement between the City of Muskogee and Georgia-Pacific LLC, for
the purpose of authorizing filming of the 2018 Azalea Festival, or take any other necessary
action. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

8. Consider approval to ratify a grant application for the FM Global Fire Prevention Grant in the
amount of $6,745.50 to be used for fire prevention and education, or take other necessary
action. (Mike O'Dell)

 

9. Consider the appointment of Sarah Elizabeth Gile to serve on the Chamber of Commerce
Committee for Convention and Tourism, to fill the unexpired term of Nicholas Wilks,
beginning April 10, 2018 and ending October 31, 2018, or take other necessary action.
(Councilor Dan Hall)

 

10. Consider approval of Change Order #5 and final payment for Muskogee Project No.
20150045 to Glover and Associates in the amount  of $159,108.87, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

 

11. Discuss the appointment of a Councilmember to serve on the Eastern Oklahoma Development
District (EODD), filling the unexpired term of James Gulley, expiring June 30, 2019, and take
other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written
materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.
 

ADJOURN



ADJOURN
 



   
Regular City Council           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MARCH 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MARCH 26, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
03-19-2018 spccmin 
03-26-2018 ccmin 



MINUTES
 

 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA, MET IN A SPECIAL CALL SESSION, IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL

MONDAY, MARCH 19, 2018
 

The Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in a Special Call Session in Council Chambers of
City Hall, Monday, March 19, 2018, at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Coburn presiding.

Meeting was called to order by Mayor John R. Coburn and the City Clerk called the roll as follows:
 

Present: John R. Coburn, Mayor; Jaime Stout, Councilmember; Janey Boydston, Councilmember;
Patrick Cale, Councilmember; Marlon Coleman, Councilmember; Dan Hall, Councilmember;
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember; Derrick Reed, Councilmember; Ivory Vann,
Councilmember 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Assistant City Manager; Roy Tucker, City
Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works
Director; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief; Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Manager; Jean Kingston,
Treasurer; George Kingston, PW Assistant Director, Utility Services; Tish Callahan, Assistant
Planning Director; Marci Gilliam, Strategic Financial Analyst; Drew Saffell, Airport Manager;
Bret Smith, Municipal Judge 

 

               
1   Move item number three (3) to item number one (1).
 
  Motion was made by Mayor John R. Coburn, seconded by Councilmember Dan

Hall  to approve moving item No. three (3) to item No. one (1). 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Councilmember Jaime Stout, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2      Consider and take possible action on Resolution No. 2713 supporting Marsy's Law for

Oklahoma, SQ 794, or take other necessary action (Councilor Marlon Coleman). 

Councilmember Marlon Coleman stated Marsy’s Law for Oklahoma SQ 794 is intended
to give crime victims equal constitutional standing during criminal investigations, in
court, and during the pardon and parole process, and to make sure that if crime victims do
not receive equal treatment, they have recourse with the courts. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Marlon Coleman, seconded by Councilmember



  Motion was made by Councilmember Marlon Coleman, seconded by Councilmember
Dan Hall to approve Resolution No. 2713 supporting Marsy's Law for Oklahoma, SQ
794. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Councilmember Jaime Stout, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember
Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
3      Consider approval to correct the term of appointment of Pamela Hale to the Chamber of

Commerce Committee for Convention and Tourism, from term ending on March 30, 2020
to term ending on March 30, 2021, or take other necessary action. (Roy Tucker) 

Councilmember Marlon Coleman left meeting at 5:40 p.m.

City Attorney Roy Tucker stated at the City Council meeting held on March 12, 2018,
Pamela Hale was appointed to the Chamber of Commerce Committee for Convention and
Tourism. Her term was listed as a two (2) year term however, it should have been a three
(3) year term. This is to correct that error. Her term will run until March 30, 2021.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Patrick Cale, seconded by Councilmember Dan

Hall to approve correcting the term of appointment of Pamela Hale to the Chamber of
Commerce Committee for Convention and Tourism, from term ending on March 30,
2020 to term ending on March 30, 2021. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Councilmember Jaime Stout, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
4   Discuss and take action appointing a Deputy Mayor, pursuant to Council Policy 1-8.

(Mayor Bob Coburn)
 
  Motion was made by Mayor John R. Coburn, seconded by Councilmember Dan

Hall  to approve appointing Janey Boydston as Deputy Mayor, pursuant to Council
Policy 1-8. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Councilmember Jaime Stout, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

__________________________________



__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

 
 
 
 

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

 
 



MINUTES
 

 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA, MET IN REGULAR SESSION, IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL

MONDAY, MARCH 26, 2018
 

The Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers of City
Hall, Monday, March 26, 2018, at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Coburn presiding.

Invocation was given by Councilmember Wayne Johnson
 
Flag Salute was led by Mayor Bob Coburn
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor John R. Coburn and the City Clerk called the roll as follows:
 

Present: Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston; Councilmember Jaime Stout;
Councilmember Patrick Cale; Councilmember Marlon Coleman; Councilmember Wayne
Johnson; Councilmember Derrick Reed; Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Absent: Councilmember Dan Hall 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Assistant City Manager; Roy Tucker, City
Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works
Director; Matthew Beese, Assistant City Attorney; Mark Wilkerson, Parks & Recreation
Director; Kelly Plunkett, Human Resources Director; Drew Saffell, Airport Manager; Rex
Eskridge, Police Chief; Rick Ewing, Assistant Director, Parks; Brooke Hall, Assistant
Director, Parks & Recreation 

               
1 Approval to excuse members not present.
 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Marlon Coleman, seconded by Deputy Mayor

Janey Boydston to excuse members not present. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION MARCH 12, 2018.   
 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Deputy Mayor

Janey Boydston to approve Regular City Council minutes of March 12, 2018. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime



  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
CONSENT AGENDA

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Marlon Coleman, seconded by Councilmember

Wayne Johnson to approve Consent Agenda. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 

 
1 Approval of claims for all City departments March 1, 2018 through March 14, 2018.   
 
2 Approval of accepting the lowest, best bid for chemical pump to Haynes Equipment in the

amount of $51,141.00, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)
  

 
3 Approval of the use of the Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport South Apron for the April 28,

2018, Touch-A-Truck event fundraiser for the Muskogee Public Library Youth Services
Department, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

  

 
4 Approval of the appointment of Councilor Ivory Vann to serve on the Purchasing

Committee. (Mayor Bob Coburn)
  

 
5 Approval of the appointment of Councilor Derrick Reed as Chairman and Councilor Dan

Hall as Vice-Chairman of the Finance Committee. (Mayor Bob Coburn)
  

 
6 Approval of the appointment of Councilor Wayne Johnson as Chairman and Councilor

Marlon Coleman as Vice-Chairman of the Public Works Committee. (Mayor Bob Coburn)
  

 
7 Approval of the appointment of Blanca Lopez to serve a four (4) year term on the Parks and

Recreation Board, beginning April 1, 2018, and ending March 31, 2022, replacing Jason
George, or take other necessary action. (Councilor Ivory Vann)

  

 
REGULAR AGENDA



 
8 Consider approval of the Trust Indenture of the Roxy Theater Community Trust; approval

of Ordinance No. 4043-A, establishing, recognizing and accepting a beneficial interest in
said Trust; approval of Resolution No. 2714, authorizing the transfer of the Roxy Theater
from the City to be held in Trust for the benefit of the City; approving an Assignment
Agreement between the City and the Trust assigning the Management Agreement of
September 1, 2015 with Oxford Productions, Inc., or take other necessary action. (Roy D.
Tucker)

City Attorney Roy Tucker stated in Committee, the City Council unanimously approved
creating a Roxy Theater Community Trust. Staff, along with Council for the Management
Company, has prepared the following documents for adoption:

- Trust Indenture creating the Roxy Theater Community Trust
- Ordinance establishing the Trust
- Resolution directing the Theater be transferred by Deed of Trust to the Roxy Theater
Community Trust
- Assignment of Management Agreement with Oxford Productions, Inc. to the Trust

The Roxy Theater Community Trust will be made up of nine (9) members.  There are three
(3) initial Trustees; Mayor Bob Coburn, Councilmember Jaime Stout, and Councilmember
Marlon Coleman.  The six (6) remaining positions will be appointed by members of the
Council.  The Trust Indenture does not establish terms, the terms will be created in the
bylaws of the trust which will be created within sixty (60) days.  The bylaws will be
approved by Council once they are prepared.  This is the same mechanism that was used
for the Martin Luther King Trust and has been very successful.  In 2015 the City of
Muskogee engaged Oxford Productions, Inc. to operate the Roxy Theater on a five (5) year
contract.  The Assignment of Management Agreement will have the City approve assigning
that contract to the Roxy Theater Community Trust allowing the management to be done by
the Trust rather than the City.  John Tyler Hammons, the attorney for the Roxy Trust,
informed Mr. Tucker that Mr. Frix, who is the President for Oxford Productions, Inc.,
would approve the assignment.  If this item is approved, Mr. Tucker is asking that all
documents become effective July 1, 2018.  This will allow everything to be in accordance
with the City's Fiscal Year which will make funding more efficient.  Any funding requests
that are made by the Trust to the City can be done in accordance with the City's regular
budgeting procedures.

Councilmember Patrick Cale stated one of the benefits is that this arrangement will allow
the Roxy to apply for various grants and to receive money through charity and other
organizations.  This will not only be beneficial for the Roxy, but for the community as a
whole. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Marlon Coleman, seconded by Councilmember

Jaime Stout to approve the Trust Indenture of the Roxy Theater Community Trust;
approval of Ordinance No. 4043-A, establishing, recognizing and accepting a beneficial
interest in said Trust; approval of Resolution No. 2714, authorizing the transfer of the
Roxy Theater from the City to be held in Trust for the benefit of the City; approving an
Assignment Agreement between the City and the Trust assigning the Management
Agreement of September 1, 2015 with Oxford Productions, Inc. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime



  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
9 Receive update from NFP Corporate Services of Oklahoma on current plan savings, and

consider approval of Resolution No. 2715 authorizing certain modifications to the medical
plan benefits under the City of Muskogee Employee Benefit Plan, providing and directing
said modifications be incorporated into the Plan Documents, Summary Plan Description
and Benefit Summary Sheets, as well as, approval of Resolution No. 2716 approving and
authorizing execution of the Mutual of Omaha renewal, the Blue Cross Blue Shield Exhibit
to the Stop Loss Coverage Policy, the Blue Cross Blue Shield Administrative Services
Agreement, the Blue Cross Blue Shield Benefits Program Application, the Blue Cross Blue
Shield PBM Fee Schedule Addendum to the Benefit Program Application, and the HCSC
COBRA Administrative Services Addendum, all to become effective on May 1, 2018, and
authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to execute all documents, or take other
necessary action. (Kelly Plunkett)

Human Resource Director Kelly Plunkett stated the Employee Health Insurance Committee
has met with NFP Corporate Services of Oklahoma to discuss plan savings and changes to
the Employee Benefits Plan.

The insurance fund balance as of February 27, 2018, was $2,912,167.35; a decrease of
$184,220.60 from March 13, 2017.  For Plan year 2017/2018, numerous benefit changes
were recommended and implemented due to the plan savings we have realized over the last
several years.  One of those changes was to reduce medical (only) premium contributions
for the City and each employee tier by 13.97%; the Insurance Committee voted
unanimously to continue the premium reduction or “premium holiday” for the 2018/2019
plan year due to the insurance fund balance.  No other Plan changes that effect benefit
value, deductibles or cost of service were recommended for Plan year 2018/2019; however,
various plan modifications (plan language changes) will need to be implemented due to a
change in law or network provider policy.  Resolution has been drafted to continue the
premium reduction or “premium holiday” and to accept other plan modifications required
due to a change in law or network provider policy, where such modifications do not effect
benefit value, deductibles or cost of service.   

Stop-loss coverage (a layer of protection in cases where health insurance claims exceed a
certain threshold—currently $100,000.00/participant) options were reviewed and
continuation of the $100,000.00 stop-loss amount was discussed. In addition, our Mutual of
Omaha (life insurance), BCBS Benefit Program Application and HCSC COBRA
Administrative Services Addendum need to be renewed; therefore, a second resolution has
been drafted to allow the City Manager, or designee to approve the following documents:
Mutual of Omaha Renewal Information and Exhibits, Blue Cross Blue Shield Exhibit to the
Stop Loss Coverage Policy, Blue Cross Blue Shield Administrative Services Agreement,
Blue Cross Blue Shield Benefit Program Application, Blue Cross Blue Shield PBM Fee
Schedule Addendum to the BPA, and the HCSC COBRA Administrative Services
Addendum, each effective May 1, 2018.

Changes to the Stop Loss Coverage document, Blue Cross Blue Shield Benefit Program

  



Application, and the HCSC COBRA Administrative Services Addendum include: 

Average claim value changed from $539.35 (per employee per month) for each
employee/family coverage unit to $555.09 (per employee per month)

A.

Maximum liability factor changed from $674.19 (per employee per month) for each
employee/family coverage unit to $693.86 (per employee per month)

B.

Aggregate point of attachment changed from $3,334,800.00 to $3,417,134.00.C.
Aggregate Stop Loss monthly premium rates increased from $2.50 for each employee
coverage unit and $2.50 for each employee/family coverage unit to $2.72 for each
employee coverage unit and $2.72 for each employee/family coverage

D.

Individual stop loss monthly premium rates changed from $76.05 for each employee
coverage unit and $76.05 for each employee/family coverage unit to $85.02 for each
employee coverage unit and $85.02 for each employee/family coverage unit

E.

Number of active members (subject to change based on enrollment)F.
Pharmacy Network changed to Traditional Select Network from Prescription Drug
Card

G.

Medical administration fee decreased from $37.25 per employee per month
(composite-fee plus rebate credit for the Prescription Drug Program) to $33.70 per
employee per month (composite-fee plus rebate credit for the Prescription Drug
Program)

H.

Administrative fees decreased from $55.75 per employee per month to $52.20 per
employee per month (fee plus rebate credit for the Prescription Drug Program plus
commissions)

I.

Medical run-off administration charge changed from $45.88 per employee per month
to $52.64 per employee per month

J.

Tentatively, open enrollment and education meetings for all employees have been
scheduled for April 10-13; however, the open enrollment period will be held April 1-30, as
required.

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember

Jaime Stout to approve Resolution No. 2715 authorizing certain modifications to the
medical plan benefits under the City of Muskogee Employee Benefit Plan, providing
and directing said modifications be incorporated into the Plan Documents, Summary
Plan Description and Benefit Summary Sheets, as well as, approval of Resolution No.
2716 approving and authorizing execution of the Mutual of Omaha renewal, the Blue
Cross Blue Shield Exhibit to the Stop Loss Coverage Policy, the Blue Cross Blue
Shield Administrative Services Agreement, the Blue Cross Blue Shield Benefits
Program Application, the Blue Cross Blue Shield PBM Fee Schedule Addendum to the
Benefit Program Application, and the HCSC COBRA Administrative Services
Addendum, all to become effective on May 1, 2018, and authorizing the City Manager,
or designee, to execute all documents. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
10 Receive report on City of Muskogee's 30-year designation as a Tree City USA. (Rick   



10 Receive report on City of Muskogee's 30-year designation as a Tree City USA. (Rick
Ewing)

Assistant Director, Parks, Rick Ewing stated the City of Muskogee was recognized by the
Oklahoma Forestry Services and the Oklahoma Urban and Community Forestry Council for
achieving national certification from the Arbor Day Foundation.   Communities,
universities, and utility companies can earn this special recognition by accomplishing
specific criteria related to planting and caring for trees, woodlands, and community forests. 
Muskogee was among twenty-one (21) cities recently honored at the State Arbor Week
Kickoff celebration held at the Oklahoma History Center in Oklahoma City on March 13,
2018.  Oklahoma celebrates Arbor Week March 25 – 31 of 2018.

Communities earn Tree City USA status by meeting core standards of sound community
forestry management, maintaining a Tree Board, having a Community Tree Ordinance, and
spending a minimum of $2.00 per capita on community forestry activities and celebrating
Arbor Week.  The Tree Line USA Program exists to recognize best practices in public and
private utility arboriculture, demonstrating how trees and utilities can co-exist for the
benefit of communities and citizens.
 
The City of Muskogee, through the Parks & Recreation Department’s Forestry Division,
has achieved Tree City USA certification for thirty (30) years. Muskogee is exceeded in the
number of years of certification by only four (4) other Oklahoma communities. 
 
The Parks & Recreation Department’s Forestry Division will be hosting Muskogee’s Arbor
Week celebration this Saturday, March 31, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. at the C. Clay Harrell
Arboretum in Honor Heights Park.  Parks and Recreation presented the Mayor, Council,
and City of Muskogee with the Muskogee Milestone Award.
 

  

 
11 Consider the appointment of Patrick Cale to the Purchasing Committee, to serve a term

commensurate with his term on City Council, replacing Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, or
take other necessary action. (Mayor Bob Coburn)

  

 
  Motion was made by Mayor John R. Coburn, seconded by Deputy Mayor Janey

Boydston to approve appointment of Patrick Cale to the Purchasing Committee, to serve
a term commensurate with his term on City Council, replacing Deputy Mayor Janey
Boydston. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed,
Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written



materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.

Stephen Ezell, 6121 S. 6th Street East, Muskogee, Oklahoma, stated he is concerned with the
teacher walk-out planned for April 2, 2018.  He feels there will be short- and long-term
repercussions caused by this action.  He strongly requests the teachers reconsider before it is too
late. 

 
ADJOURN

 

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

 
 
 
 

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

 
 



   
Regular City Council 1.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of claims for all city departments March 15, 2018 through March 28, 2018.

BACKGROUND:
Claims List for all City Departments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve of the claims for all City Departments March 15, 2018 through March 28, 2018.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims List 



















   
Regular City Council 2.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Manager 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to accept Staff recommendation to REJECT all bids for the Emergency Management building
roof and rebid at a later date, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
Emergency Management building roof was installed 1980. 

Remove and replace damaged built-up 3-ply roofing in place. 112.50 sq.Ft.
Remove and replace damaged insulation-ISO board. 12.50 Sq.Ft.
Remove and replace damaged flash parapet wall only. 430 LF
Remove and replace damaged framing hanger. 34 Ea
Required equipment boom lift-30'-45' reach for use on framing 3 days
Required tele-handler/forklift and operator for use on roofing
Required dumpster load-Approx. 40 yards, 7-8 tons of debris
Remove and replace damaged sheathing-plywood-1/2" CDX 3150 sq. Ft
Remove and replace damaged truss-flat roof system
Remove and replace commercial electrical.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve to accept the lowest and best bids from First Tier in the amount of $73,868.00 for Emergency
Management building roof, or take other necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Recommedation Letter 
Tabulation Sheet 







   
Regular City Council 3.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Gayle Johnson, Chief

Secretary
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to receive donated funds for the month of February, 2018 in the amount of $430.00 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take other necessary action. (Rex
Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
City Council approved a Resolution authorizing a Sponsorship Program for the City's Animal Shelter
with said funds to be used for the purpose of neutering and spaying shelter animals.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve receiving donated funds for the month of February, 2018 in the amount of $430.00 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Agenda Item Title. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Feb Donations 



pg. 1

Animal Shelter Donations 

February 2018

Fred Fabian $ 100.00

Corbell Greeling 80.00

Bryce Clark 10.00

James Dum 40.00

Clayton Jones 25.00

Virgil  Mason 40.00

Dakota Turman 10.00

Tiffany Pritchett 40.00

Paul  Wilson 5.00

M. McCutcheon 50.00

Yesenia Gonzalez 30.00

Total: $ 430.00



   
Regular City Council 4.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For: Gary Garvin, Planning  Initiator: Susan Ross, Office

Adm 1
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of Resolution No. 2717 and Resolution No. 2718 declaring two (2) parcels of property, more
particularly described in the resolution, as surplus to the needs of the City and authorize the conveyance
of said properties, or take any other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

BACKGROUND:
Parcel 1- The City received one bid from Michael Lapp in the amount of $363.00 for the property
located at 932 S. I  Street.

Parcel 2- The parcel located at 1011 S. G Street is being requested by Dammyonn and Tanya Wolffe at
no cost through the Incentive Property Program.  Mr. Wolffe is planning to build a single-family
dwelling on the property.  Mr. Wolffe will be required to obtain a building permit within one year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve resolutions declaring two (2) parcels of property as surplus to the needs of the City and
authorize the conveyance of said properties.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
2717 RES 04-09-2018 
Map 932 S. I St. 
2718 RES 04-09-2018 
Map 1011 S G St. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2717

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY PRESENTLY IN THE POSSESSION 
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE TO BE SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF SAID REAL PROPERTY, SAID TRACT 
OF LAND DESCRIBED AS:

S ½ LOT 11 BLOCK 324, MUSKOGEE OT,

CITY OF MUSKOGEE, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma has in its possession certain real property which 
are no longer needed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee desires to dispose of said real property, which are no longer 
needed, as surplus property according to the provisions of the Charter and the Ordinances of said City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA;

SECTION 1: That property described as:

S ½ LOT 11 BLOCK 324, MUSKOGEE OT,

City of Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, is hereby declared to be surplus to the needs of 
the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, and the City Manager is authorized to dispose of said real property.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 
OKLAHOMA, THIS ______ DAY OF ______________, 2017.

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
Seal

Approved as to form and legality this _____ day of ____________, 2017.

________________________________________
ROY TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
323

AutoCAD SHX Text
324

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
325

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEPENDENCE  AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORD 1406-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSED ORD 1301-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH "I" STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH "K" STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH "L" STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUGGED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=568.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=558.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=566.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=556.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=568.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=556.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=567.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=555.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"



RESOLUTION NO. 2718

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY PRESENTLY IN THE POSSESSION 
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE TO BE SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF SAID REAL PROPERTY, SAID TRACT 
OF LAND DESCRIBED AS:

S 75 LOT 6 BLOCK 327, MUSKOGEE OT,

CITY OF MUSKOGEE, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma has in its possession certain real property which 
are no longer needed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee desires to dispose of said real property, which are no longer 
needed, as surplus property according to the provisions of the Charter and the Ordinances of said City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA;

SECTION 1: That property described as:

S 75 LOT 6 BLOCK 327, MUSKOGEE OT

City of Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, is hereby declared to be surplus to the needs of 
the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, and the City Manager is authorized to dispose of said real property.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 
OKLAHOMA, THIS ______ DAY OF ______________, 2017.

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
Seal

Approved as to form and legality this _____ day of ____________, 2017.

________________________________________
ROY TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
327

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
328

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
318

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH "F" STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH "G" STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
KALAMAZOO   AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=557.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=567.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=567.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=558.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"



   
Regular City Council 5.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For:  Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to participate in The Poor People's Campaign: A National Call for Moral Revival, in
furtherance of Resolution No. 2505 designating the City of Muskogee as a Community of Practice.
(Councilor Marlon Coleman)

BACKGROUND:
Councilor Coleman would like to discuss with the Council participation in The Poor People's Campaign,
a campaign created from the spirit of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr's. campaign of the same name in 1968. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discuss and take any necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 2505 City of Muskogee as a Community of Practice 







   
Regular City Council 6.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City

Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of Resolution No. 2719 of the Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, Commemorating
the 50th Anniversary of the Death of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., or take other necessary action.
(Councilor Marlon Coleman)

BACKGROUND:
April 4, 2018 marks the 50th Anniversary of the assassination of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. In
anticipation of community and nationwide remembrance celebrations, Councilor Coleman asks the
Council to consider a resolution of commemoration. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Resolution.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Res #2719 



RESOLUTION NO. 2719

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 
OKLAHOMA, COMMEMORATING THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE 
DEATH OF DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. 

WHEREAS, April 4, 2018, commemorates the 50th Anniversary of the assassination of 

Dr. Martin Luther King, who forever changed our Nation through his leadership, service, and 

clarity of vision; and,

WHEREAS, in the brief time Dr. King walked upon this earth, he devoted his life to 

strengthening the content of the American character and called on our Nation to live up to its 

founding principles of life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness for all its citizens; and,

WHEREAS, through his determination, spirit, and resolve, Dr. King helped lead one of 

the greatest movements for equality and freedom in history; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee wishes to honor the lasting legacy of this great 

American, remembering the ideals for which he fought, and recommitting ourselves to ensuring 

that our country’s promise extends to all Americans across the great land.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. That the City of Muskogee hereby honorable recognizes the significant 

contributions and continuing legacy of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. 

SECTION 2: That the City of Muskogee encourages all of its citizens to honor the 

legacy of Dr. King by living out his teachings, and continuing to work toward the day when the 

dignity and humanity of every person is respected and our city becomes, in Dr. King’s words, a 

‘Beloved Community'.

ADOPTED THIS ______ DAY OF APRIL, 2018. 

CITY OF MUSKOGEE

___________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR



ATTEST:

________________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

(SEAL)

Approved as to form and legality this 2nd day of April, 2018.

__________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



   
Regular City Council 7.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of a location agreement between the City of Muskogee and Georgia-Pacific LLC, for the
purpose of authorizing filming of the 2018 Azalea Festival, or take any other necessary action. (Roy D.
Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
GP intends to capture film footage of their employees' participation at Azalea Festival activities around
the city. Since most of these activities take place on City property, they have requested the City grant
permission to utilize film equipment on city property, as well as, capture images of city buildings, logos
and the like.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve location agreement.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Agreement 
Certificate of Insurance 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@981B4E38\@BCL@981B4E38.doc

LOCATION AGREEMENT

1. The undersigned Lessor (“Lessor”) as owner of the premises described 
herein (or as agent for such owner) irrevocably grants to Georgia-Pacific LLC_, as lessee, 
(“Lessee”), and any agent, licensee and/or assignee (“Successor”) of Lessee the right to 
use and photograph (including without limitations by means of motion picture, still or 
video device photography) both the real and personal property located at the premises 
generally described as follows:

2018 Azalea Festival and surrounding events to include Azalea Festival Parade, 
Exchange Club 34th Annual Chili and BBQ Cookoff, the Muskogee Exchange Club 
Cook-Off Kick-Off Party, and other unspecified events around the City of Muskogee.

in any manner whatsoever and any name connected with the premises and any signs 
including the right to photograph, record and use any logos and verbiage contained on the 
premises, the right to refer to the premises or any part thereof, together with access to and 
egress from said premises with Lessee’s personnel and equipment for the purpose of 
erecting and maintaining temporary motion picture sets and structures (to the extent 
required by Lessee), and photographing said premises, sets and structures and/or 
recording sound for such scenes as Lessee may desire.

2. Lessor warrants that Lessor is the owner (or the agent for the owner) of 
said premises, that Lessor is fully authorized to enter into this agreement and has the right 
to grant Lessee the use of said premises and each and all of the rights herein granted.

3. Lessee is granted permission to use and photograph the premises as 
contemplated by this agreement beginning on or about _4/12/2018__ and continuing
until the completion of all photographing and recording for which Lessee may desire the 
use of said premises, estimated to require about Three (3) days of occupancy over a 
period of about Three (3) days.

4. Lessee agrees to pay as rental for said premises:

Zero ($0) dollars  

All charges shall be payable on completion of the work contemplated hereunder, unless 
specifically agreed to the contrary.  Lessee may at any time elect not to use the premises 
in which case neither party shall have any obligation hereunder.

5. In the event Lessee desires to photograph retakes or other scenes, Lessee 
may reenter upon and use said premises for such period as may be reasonably necessary 



Location Agreement Between ____________ and ___Georgia-Pacific LLC_
Dated
Page 2 of 3

C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@981B4E38\@BCL@981B4E38.doc

therefor commencing at any time within eighteen (18) months after completion of 
principle photography on this location, and in such event the above rental rate shall apply.

6. Lessee shall leave said premises in substantially as good condition as 
when received by it, excepting reasonable wear and tear and use of said premises for the 
purposes herein permitted; and Lessee shall have the right to remove all of its sets, 
structures and other material and equipment from said premises.

7. Lessee shall indemnify and hold harmless from and against damages for 
injury to or death of persons and for damage to or destruction of property of the owner 
occurring during Lessee’s use of said premises and caused by the negligence of Lessee or 
any of its employees in conduct of Lessee’s motion picture operations hereunder to the 
extent such loss is not otherwise covered by any insurance provided that Lessee’s liability 
shall be limited to one million dollars. Proof of applicable insurance coverage shall be 
provided to Lessor at least five (5) days prior to Lessee’s use of the premises.

8. All rights of every kind in and to all photography and sound recordings 
made hereunder shall be solely owned in perpetuity by Lessee and its Successors, and 
neither Lessor nor any tenant or other party now or hereafter having an interest in said 
premises shall have any right of action, including without limitation any right to 
injunctive relief against Lessee, its Successors and/or any other party arising out of any 
use or non-use of said photography and/or sound recordings.

9. Lessor hereby irrevocably grants to Lessee and its Successors the right, in 
perpetuity throughout the world, to duplicate and recreate all or a portion of said premises 
and to use the same in any media and/or manner known or unknown, including without 
limitation in and in connection with any motion picture, theme park, motion picture 
studio tour and/or merchandise in connection with any if the foregoing and/or in 
connection with any publicity, promotion and/or advertising of same.

10. Lessor hereby waives, in behalf of himself and his insurance carrier, all 
rights of subrogation with respect to any claim or claims which may arise under any and 
all policies of insurance now or during the term hereof in effect insuring any property of 
Lessor situated in or upon said premises.

11. Neither Lessee, nor its Successors shall be obligated to make any actual 
use of any photography, recordings, depictions or other references to the premises 
hereunder in any motion picture or otherwise.



Location Agreement Between ____________ and ___Georgia-Pacific LLC_
Dated
Page 3 of 3

C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@981B4E38\@BCL@981B4E38.doc

12. This agreement contains full and complete understanding between the 
parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings pertaining hereto and 
cannot be modified except by a writing signed by each party.

DATED:  ____________________________
____________________________
____________________________

By:  
Lessee – GP Muskogee Mill

Address:  4901 Chandler Rd
Muskogee, OK 74014

Approved this ______ day of April, 2018 by the City Council of the City of Muskogee. 

___________________________________
John R. Coburn, Mayor

_______________________
Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk

Attest:

Approved as to form and legality.

______________________________
Roy D. Tucker, City Attorney



H
o

ld
e
r
 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
r
 :

 
77777

77707
07070

00777
63616

06555
33307

62617
44630

44577
07453

12667
24073

00072
74046

61463
31120

76240
41134

72110
20716

20157
32274

11207
56263

71764
32330

07504
23757

22367
56077

44015
35027

65520
77727

25202
57731

10777
77770

70007
07007

 
66666

66606
06060

00626
06466

20444
62006

22200
42400

60200
06222

02406
00600

00062
22024

06206
20000

62220
06242

26002
20600

20262
62242

22006
00200

62622
42200

06020
00626

22400
22060

02004
04222

24200
66646

06224
06644

40666
66660

60006
06006

C
e
r
ti

fi
c
a
te

 N
o

 :
5
7
0
0
7
0
5
2
1
9
1
0

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
 DATE(MM/DD/YYYY)        

 03/26/2018

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If 

SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to   the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this 

certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

PRODUCER

Aon Risk Services South, Inc.
Atlanta GA Office
3550 Lenox Road NE
Suite 1700
Atlanta GA 30326 USA 

PHONE
(A/C. No. Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

(866) 283-7122

INSURED 24147Old Republic Insurance CompanyINSURER A:

INSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

FAX
(A/C. No.):

800-363-0105

CONTACT
NAME:

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC
133 Peachtree Street NE
Atlanta GA 30303 USA 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 570070521910 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. Limits shown are as requested

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

SUBR
WVD

INSR 
LTR

ADDL 
INSD POLICY NUMBER  TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

POLICY LOC

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

X

X

X

X

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 

$1,000,000

Excluded

Excluded

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000 Self Insured

Retention Applies

A 12/01/2017 12/01/2018MWZY311907

PRO-
JECT

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED 

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
 AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS 

ONLY

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

X

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

$1,000,000A 12/01/2017 12/01/2018 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

(Ea accident)
MWTB 311905

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE

EACH OCCURRENCE

DED 

UMBRELLA LIAB

RETENTION

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

X OTH-
ER

PER STATUTEA 12/01/2017 12/01/2018

$1,000,000

Y / N

(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR / PARTNER / EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / AN

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 

EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

$1,000,000

MWC31190400

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CANCELLATIONCERTIFICATE HOLDER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVECity of Muskogee
229 W. Okmulgee Avenue
Muskogee OK 74401 USA 

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 

EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

POLICY PROVISIONS.



   
Regular City Council 8.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For: Michael O'Dell, Fire Department  Initiator: Michael O'Dell, Fire

Chief
Department: Fire Department
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to ratify a grant application for the FM Global Fire Prevention Grant in the amount of
$6,745.50 to be used for fire prevention and education, or take other necessary action. (Mike O'Dell)

BACKGROUND:
This grant is a in the amount of $6,745.50 for fire prevention and education from FM Global. There is
no agency match for these grants.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Fire Departments grant application to FM Global in the amount of $6,745.50 or take other
necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 9.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider the appointment of Sarah Elizabeth Gile to serve on the Chamber of Commerce Committee for
Convention and Tourism, to fill the unexpired term of Nicholas Wilks, beginning April 10, 2018 and
ending October 31, 2018, or take other necessary action. (Councilor Dan Hall)

BACKGROUND:
The Chamber of Commerce Committee for Convention and Tourism has requested a replacement for
the seat previously held by Nicholas Wilks. His unexpired term will end on October 31, 2018

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval of the appointment.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Sarah Gile 









   
Regular City Council 10.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Submitted For: Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd,

Office
Administrator
I

Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Change Order #5 and final payment for Muskogee Project No. 20150045 to Glover
and Associates in the amount  of $159,108.87, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
Glover and Associates has submitted all information necessary to close out this project which has been
reconciled in Change order #5.  The work is complete to the satisfaction of the city.  This is the final
payment to Glover and Associates for the 43rd  and 45th Street Project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Change order #5 and Final payment to Glover and Associates in the amount of $159,108.87 for
the  43rd and 45th Street Project.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Account #375-6030-431-62-65

Attachments
Final Pay 
CO #5 
Lien Release 



































   
Regular City Council 11.           
Meeting Date: 04/09/2018  
Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Discuss the appointment of a Councilmember to serve on the Eastern Oklahoma Development District
(EODD), filling the unexpired term of James Gulley, expiring June 30, 2019, and take other necessary
action. (Roy D. Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
This is to appoint a councilmember to serve on the EEOD, replacing the vacated seat previously held by
former Councilmember James Gulley.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Appoint a councilmember.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	___7214
	    03-19-2018 spccmin
	    03-26-2018 ccmin
	_ 1.  _C.01.__7213
	    Claims List
	_ 2.  _C.02._Emergency Management Building
	    Recommedation Letter
	    Tabulation Sheet
	_ 3.  _C.03._Donations Animal Shelter
	    Feb Donations
	_ 4.  _C.04._Consider approval of resolutions declaring two (2) parcels of property as surplus
	    2717 RES 04-09-2018
	    Map 932 S. I St.
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	    2718 RES 04-09-2018
	    Map 1011 S G St.
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	_ 5.  _C.05._Poor People's Campaign
	    Resolution 2505 City of Muskogee as a Community of Practice
	_ 6.  _C.06._Resolution 2719
	    Res _2719
	_ 7.  _C.07._Azalea Festival
	    Agreement
	    Certificate of Insurance
	Regular_ 8.  _C.08._FM Global Fire Prevention Grant
	Regular_ 9.  _C.09._Convention and Tourism
	    Sarah Gile
	Regular_ 10.  _C.10._Consider Approval of Change order _5 and Final payment to Glover and Associates in the amount of $159,108.87 for the 43rd and 45th Street Project.
	    Final Pay
	    CO _5
	    Lien Release
	_ 11.  _C.11._Board Appointment

